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Town of Nags Head
Planning and Development
Post Office Box 99
Telephone 252-441-7016
Department
Nags Head, North Carolina 27959
FAX 252-441-4290



www.townofnagshead.net

MEMORANDUM
TO:
Board of Commissioners
FROM:
Planning Board and Planning and Development Staff

DATE:
February 18, 2004
SUBJECT:
Review of Preliminary Plat of Southridge Subdivision Section V

PROJECT LOCATION:
10.5 acres west of US 158 off Vansciver Drive 

PROJECT ZONING:
R-2 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Preliminary subdivision plat to create 16 single family residential lots 

The applicant, Albemarle Engineering, on behalf of Nags Head Construction and Development, Inc. is submitting the attached preliminary subdivision plat for 16 single-family residential lots.  The lots would be created from a 10.51-acre tract located on the west side of US 158 directly north of existing Southridge Section III, and west of South Ridge Section IV, off of the existing terminus of Vansciver Drive and Ridgeview Way.

All but four (4) proposed lots would have direct access from a proposed, full-width extension of Ridgeview Way that would terminate into a standard cul-de-sac road section. Four (4) lots would be accessed from existing Vansciver Drive. 
The applicant would be responsible for dedicating all necessary road, utility, right-of-way, fire hydrant, and street light improvements to the Town prior to the recordation and sale of any lot in the proposed subdivision. All improvements must be constructed to applicable Town standards and inspected by the Town prior to recordation of the subdivision plat. 
The lot width, lot area, and setbacks shown for each lot comply with the zoning ordinance. The Fire Department and Public Works Departments have preliminarily approved the location of proposed waterlines, water connections, street lights, and fire hydrants. The Town Engineer has approved the applicant’s storm water management and drainage plan. 

Remaining issues:

Wetlands:

Extensive Army Corps designated 404 wetlands are shown on the proposed subdivision plat.  If the subdivision is approved, several lots would appear to be significantly impacted by wetlands. Development of lots containing 404 wetlands will be subject to additional permitting requirements.  Also, the Town of Nags Head 2000 Land and Water use plan precludes the filling of certain types of wetlands that the Army Corps of Engineers normally would permit.  Per Staff and the Planning Board’s recommendation, the plat bears a note informing potential lot purchasers that wetland development and filling is strictly regulated and required permits must be obtained prior to land disturbance.  

Drainage:
Staff is aware that the proposed lots are located near the seasonal water table and are prone to water retention.  The Town Engineer has visited the site, and tested the water table depth.  He has determined that the proposed road development, if completed as proposed would not increase the magnitude of existing drainage conditions on the site.
Overhead power Easement:

The applicant has stated on the subdivision plat that the overhead power line bisecting the site is not located in a utility easement.  Further, the plat states that the power provider will relocate the utility line within street rights-of-way.  Staff recommends that the applicant provide written documentation from the power provider to substantiate both of these statements. 
Planning Board Recommendation:

At their regular meeting of February 17, 2004 the Planning Board Members discussed the proposed subdivision plat. Most of the discussion focused on 1) various aspects of the development of the wetlands depicted on the plat and 2) on when the applicant should be required to submit written verification of Dominion North Carolina Power’s plans to relocate the overhead power line spanning the proposed subdivision into public rights-of-way.
The wetland notification issue is resolved. The Planning Board and staff approved the wetland notification that now appears on the plat.     

Concerning the written verification about the status of the overhead power line, the Planning Board agreed with the applicant that it can be a lengthy process to obtain documentation from Dominion North Carolina Power. The Planning Board recommended that the applicant be required to submit the necessary documentation from Dominion North Carolina Power prior to submittal of the final subdivision plat for the Planning Board’s review.  

On a vote of 6 to 0 the Planning Board voted to recommend conditional approval of the proposed preliminary subdivision plat.

  Staff maintains its original recommendation that the applicant submit the verification of the status of the power line before action on the preliminary plat by the Board of Commissioners. Staff maintains that the applicant should be able to provide assurance to the Board of Commissioners that the preliminary plat contains no lots that would be precluded from development due to the power line or utility easement that may support it.
Staff Recommendation:

 Staff has reviewed the attached preliminary subdivision plat and recommends that it be approved provided the applicant satisfies the following condition:
1. Prior to action by the Board of Commissioners, the applicant shall provide staff with a letter from the owner of the overhead power line clarifying the status of any easements supporting the line and explaining any plans to relocate the line.   
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